
 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 1 

 

1. Attendance and Apologies 
 
Members 
 
Cr David Wright (Mayor) 
Cr Sharon Cadwallader (Chair) 
Cr Keith Williams 
 
Shaun Eastment, Lennox Head Landcare 
Alan Veacock, Ballina Heights Residences Action Group 
Monica Wilcox, Lennox Head Residents Association 
Jim Gilchrist, Preserving Lake Ainsworth Association 
Simon Jones, Preserving Lake Ainsworth Association 
Lou Wilson, Lennox Head Surf Life Saving Club 
Fran Byrne, Coastcare 
Lorraine Leuckel, Marine Rescue Ballina  
Jason Dwyer, Lake Ainsworth Sport and Recreation Centre 
 
Observers 
 
Council Staff 
 
John Truman, Group Manager Civil Services  
Steve Barnier, Group Manager Strategic and Community Facilities  
 
Apologies 
Cr Jeff Johnson 
Darel Vidler, Lennox Head Combined Sports Association 
Lyn Walker, Ballina Environment Society 
Debbie Smith, Lennox Head Chamber of Commerce 
 
The apologies were accepted. 
 
The Chair extended a welcome to the Committee to Mr Jones. 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 
Nil 

3. Confirmation of Minutes 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Minutes of the “B” Ward Committee held 15 May 2017 be taken as 
read and confirmed. (Shaun Eastment/Monica Wilcox) 
 

4. Deputations 
 
Nil 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 2 

 

5. Outstanding Business 
 

(a) Stormwater and drainage matters (from 20 March 2017 meeting) 
 

The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 
(b) Signage Adjacent to Marine Rescue Tower (from 20 March 2017 

meeting) 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 

(c) Lyn Walker – Stormwater and Drainage Matters 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 
 
(d) Bush Regeneration – Weed Growth – Coast Road 

 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 
 
(e) Coastal Recreational Path/Bush Regeneration 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted.  Ms Byrne informed the 
Committee that Coastcare intends to take no further action in relation to this 
matter. 
 
 
(f) Proposed Olympic Training Facility 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 
 
(g) Sand Quarry – Newrybar Swamp Road 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted.  A question was asked 
about whether there would be a traffic management plan operating to regulate 
vehicle movements associated with the quarry’s operation.  It was advised 
that we will need to wait and see what the applicant proposes, if and when a 
development application for a quarry is lodged and assessed. 
 
(h) Williams Reserve Lighting 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 
(i) Megan Crescent - Reserve 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 

  



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 3 

 

(j) Bora Ring – Gibbon Street Lennox Head 
 

The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 

 
(k) North Angels Beach Estate Park – Softfall 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 

 
(l) Megan Crescent - Park 
 
The information contained in the agenda was noted. 
 

6. Business with Notice from Members 
 

Nil 

7. Council Documents on Exhibition 
 
The list of Council documents which have recently been exhibited for 
community feedback was noted. 
 

 

8. Business Without Notice 
 

(a) Jim Gilchrist – Coast Road/Skennars Head Road Roundabout 
 
Expressed congratulations to Council on recently completing the new 
roundabout. 
 
(b) Jim Gilchrist – Lake Ainsworth 
 
Asked if there is a traffic management plan in place for the southern road 
adjacent to the caravan park. 
 
A traffic management plan is not currently in place, however it is something 
that may be considered, subject to approvals being issued for the proposed 
new works in this locality. 
 
(c) Lou Wilson – Vegetation Management, Lennox Head 
 
Prompted discussion about the suitability of Norfolk Island Pines, expressing 
a view that they are inappropriate, and that native species of trees should be 
preferred in public areas. 
 
Mr Wilson noted that he will bring the matter back to a future meeting for 
further discussion. 
 

  



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 4 

 

(d) Lou Wilson – Lighting in Public Areas 
 
Advised that the area of Lennox Head in the vicinity of Rayner Lane, 
Rutherford Street and the adjacent foreshore reserve area is poorly 
illuminated and would benefit from enhanced lighting. 
 
Mr Truman indicated that Council’s current adopted lighting program does not 
have upgrading scheduled in this locality. 
 
(At this point, Cr Cadwallader departed the meeting and Cr Williams assumed 
the Chair). 
 
(e) Fran Byrne – Bush Regeneration, Coastal Reserve, East Ballina 
 
Gave an update on Coastcare’s current bush regeneration program in the 
vicinity of Shelly Beach. 
 
John Truman advised that relevant consent conditions for the construction of 
the path remain in place.  Councillors have requested staff investigate the 
option of a 4wd access at Black Head. 
 
(f) Fran Byrne – Weed Management, Public Land 
 
Asked why iconic public reserves like Mercer Park in East Ballina do not 
attract greater resources for weed management and rehabilitation. 
 
Mr Truman outlined how Council’s resources for this operational area are 
allocated.  He also advised that the Council has recently considered a report 
in relation to our weed management program.  A copy of this report is 
attached to these Minutes for the information of members. 
 
(g) Fran Byrne - Bitou Bush, Shelly Beach, East Ballina 
 
Asked if Council is intending to remove the infestation of Bitou Bush in the 
Coastal Reserve adjacent to the site of the former Shelly Beach Café. 
 
Mr Truman indicated that he will have the area inspected and take action, if 
required. 
 
(h) Shaun Eastment - Don Apps Memorial 
 
Acknowledged the effort Council is currently making to establish a memorial 
to acknowledge the extensive community service of the late Mr Don Apps. 
 
(i) Monica Wilcox – Lennox Head Town Centre 

 
Noted that considerable interest is being generated in Lennox Head 
concerning this project. 
 

  



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 5 

 

(j) Monica Wilcox – Ballina Shire Pedestrian and Mobility Plan 
(PAMP) 

 
Briefly discussed elements of Council’s PAMP insofar as it relates to the 
Montwood Drive and Greenfield Road localities. 
 
 
(k) Monica Wilcox – Community-Based Tree Plantings 

 
Enquired about procedures/opportunities associated with community-based 
tree planting programs. 
 
Mr Truman suggested that the matter be discussed with Council’s Natural 
Resource Officer, James Brideson, who will be pleased to assist. 
 
(l) Monica Wilcox – Williams Reserve 
 
Enquired about maintenance within the western area of Williams Reserve. 
 
Mr Truman advised that maintenance within the reserve will continue within 
current available resources and that Council staff are monitoring grant 
opportunities to fund a review of the reserve’s vegetation plan of 
management. 
 
(m) Monica Wilcox – Coastal Recreation Path, Flat Rock 

 
Noted the incursions into the vegetated dunal areas east of the Flat Rock 
Tent Park. 
 
Mr Truman indicated that Council staff are monitoring activities in that area. 
 
(n) Monica Wilcox – Bollards adjacent to the Coast Road at Skennars 

Head 
 

Expressed her disappointment at the recent placement of concrete bollards 
along the edge of the Coastal Reserve at Skennars Head, these being 
unsightly and obscuring views of passing motorists. 
 
(o) Alan Veacock – Tamarind Drive/Deadmans Creek Road 

Illumination 
 

Noted that Ballina Heights Estate residents remain concerned that 
illumination of the Tamarind Drive/Deadmans Creek Road intersection is 
inadequate. 
 
(p) Alan Veacock – Tamarind Drive Flooding Issues 
 
Requested an update concerning flooding issues on Tamarind Drive. 
 
Mr Truman advised that the RMS has agreed to fund raising the level of 
Tamarind Drive, with Council to be the contractor for these works.  Timing, 
and the design approach for the work is currently under consideration. 
 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 6 

 

This item also included discussion regarding strategies for improved access 
between Ballina Heights Estate and the Pacific Highway Motorway during 
flooding events, including use of the south-facing off ramp at Cumbalum. 
 
(q) Alan Veacock – Ballina Heights Estate Recreation Facilities 

 
Noted that at times of peak usage of the Ballina Heights Estate sporting 
grounds, the associated car parking area is inadequate.  Also, that a half-
court basketball facility at the sporting grounds has been proposed as being 
desirable. 
 
(r) Alan Veacock – Home Building Works 

 
Advised that his Group has been contacted by a number of residents of the 
Ballina Heights Estate advising that wet areas within their respective 
dwellings are experiencing leakages after Council final inspections and the 
granting of occupation certificates. 
 
It was suggested to Mr Veacock that the residents making these 
representations should take the matter up directly with Council or the other 
relevant certifying authority. 

9. Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for Monday 18 September 
2017 at 4.30 pm. 
 

10. Meeting closure 
 
There being no further business, the meeting concluded at 5.50 pm. 

  



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 7 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 8 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 9 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 10 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 11 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 12 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 13 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 14 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 15 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 16 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 17 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 18 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 19 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 20 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 21 

 



 Ballina Shire "B" Ward Committee Minutes 17 July 2017 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
Ballina Shire Council   “B” Ward Committee Agenda 
Monday 17 July 2017  Page 22 

 

 


	1. Attendance and Apologies
	2. Declarations of Interest
	3. Confirmation of Minutes
	RECOMMENDATION

	4. Deputations
	5. Outstanding Business
	(a) Stormwater and drainage matters (from 20 March 2017 meeting)
	(c) Lyn Walker – Stormwater and Drainage Matters
	6. Business with Notice from Members
	7. Council Documents on Exhibition
	8. Business Without Notice
	9. Next Meeting
	10. Meeting closure

